UMITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 5
77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
CHICAGO, IL 80804-3530

DEC -8 2017

REPLY TO THE ATTENTION OF:

LC-17F

Mr. John Ockert

President

DI’s Interior Specialties, Ine.
6505 Rahe Road

Kingsley, Michigan 49649

Consent Agreement and Final Order In the Matter of:
DJ’s Interior Specialties, Inc.  TSCA-05-2018-0001

Dear Mr. Ockert:
Encloséd please find a copy of a fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO)in

m &f 20T with

Resolution of the above case. This document was ﬁled " Iy y

the Regional Hearing Clerk.

The civil penalty in the amount of $980.00 is to be paid in the manner described in paragraphs 33
and 34. Please be certain that the docket number 1s written on both the transmittal letter and on
the check.

Thank you for your cooperation in resolving this matter.

Sincerelyf,
il %Lﬂc’ﬁ/
Pamela Grace

Pesticides and Toxic Compliance Section
Land and Chemicals Pivision

Enclosure

Recyoled/Recyclable e Printed with Vegetahle Ol Based Inks an 100% Recycled Paper (100% Post-Consumer)



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
' REGION S
I the Matter of: Docket No. TECA-05-20128-0901
- 7S Interior Speciafiies, fne. )
- Kingsley, Michigan Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
Under Section 16{a) of the Toxic Substances
' : Centrol Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)
Respendent

R e T S e

Consent Agreement and Final Order

Preliminary Statement
1. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 1-6(a) of
the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a), and the Consolidated Rules of
Practice GQ.Verning the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/
Termination or Susjaension of Permits (“Cc}nsoiidated. Rules™), as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22.
2 The Complainant is. by lawful delegation, the Director of the Land and Chemicals
Diviston, U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5.
3. Respondentis DJ’s Interior Specialties, Inc., located ';;t 6505 Rahe Rbad, Kingsley,
Michigan. |
4. Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a
complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO). 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b).
5. The parties agree that setﬂing this action without the filing of arcomplaint or the
adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.
6. Réspondent consents to the assessment of the ¢ivil penalty specified in this CAFO

and to the terms of this CAFO.



Furisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7. Respondent admits the jurisdictional alle.gati{)ns in this CAFQ and neither admits
nor denies the general allegations in th.ijs CAFO. |

8.  Respondent waives its right to request éileaziilg as provided at 40 C.IR. § 22.15(c),
any right to-contest ;1‘1_6 allegations in this CAFO and its rigﬁt to appeal this CAFO.

Statutory and Regulatory Background

9. | In promulgating the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, at

42.U.S.C. § 4851 el seq., Congfess found, among .oth.er thing,s; that low-level lTead poisoniﬁg.is

~widespread among American children, afflicting as many as 3,000,000 children un.der the age of
6; atTow lsvels, lead poisoning in children causes intélﬁgence deficiencies, 'reaéing and learning
disabilities, impaired hearing, reduced attention span, hyperactivity, aﬁd behavior probléms; and
the ingestion of household dust c:_ontaining lead from detenorating or aBraded 1ead~.based paint is
the most common cause of lead poisoning in children. A key component of the national strafegy
to redt‘-lce and eliminate the threét of childhood lead poisoniﬁg is to educate the public concerning
the hazards and sources of lead-based pain.t pqisoning and steps to reduce and eliminate such
hazards.

10. Section 1021 of the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992
amended TSCA by adding Subchapter IV — Lead Exposure Reduction. Seqtion 406{b) of TSCA,
15 U.S.C. § 2686, required the Administrator of EPA td promulgate régulatiol_lsto require each
perso_ﬁ who peﬁ‘orms for compensation a renovation of target housiﬁg to provide a lead hazé.rd
information pamphlet to the owner and oceupant of such housing prior to commencing tlie

renovation.



11.. Scc‘t.ien 407 of TSCA, 15 U.8.C. § 2687, required that the regulafions promulgated
by the Administrator incl:ude such recordkeef}ing and reporting requirements as may be
necessary té insure the effective imp]ementaﬁon of TSCA Subchapter 1V

12. On June I, 1998, BPA promulgated, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 2686 and 2687,
regulations codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E, which was subsequently amended on April
22, 2008.

13. Féderal regulations at 40 CV.F R. § 74583 def-meﬁrm to‘mean a company; |
partnership, corpbration, sole proprietorship, or individual d\oing business, association, or other
business entity; a Federal, State, Tribal, or local government agency; or a nonprofit organization.

14. Federal regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 745.83 define re-nomrion to mean the
modification of any existing structure, or portion ”thereof, that results in the disturbance of
painted surfaces, unless that activity 1s perfonﬁed as part of an abatement as defined by this part
(40 CFR.§ 745 223). The term renovation includes (but'is not limited to): the removal,
modification or repair of painted surfaces or péhlted components (e.g., modification of painted
doors, surface restorati.on, window repair, surface preparation activity (such as sanding, scraping,
or other such activities that may generate paint dust)); the removal of building comp011¢11ts (e.g.,
walls, ceilings, plumbing, Winrdows); weatherization projects '(e.g., cutting holes m painted
surfaces to install blown-in insulation or to gain access to attics, planning thresholds Ito install
weather stripping), and interim controls that disturb painted surfaces.

15. Federal regulations at 40 C.F R § 745.103 deﬁm residential dwelling to mean a
single family dwelling, including attached structures such as porches and stoops; or a single-

family dwelling unit in a structure that contains more than one separate residential dweliing unit,

(W]



and in which each su;h unit is uséd or occupied, or intended to be used or occupied, in whole or
in part, as the residence of one or more persons..

16. Federal regulations at 40 C.F.R, § 745.103 deﬁné {farget housing to mean any
h{)usiﬁg constructed ﬁrior to 1978, except housing for the elderly or persons with disabilities
(unless any child who is less than six (6) years of age resides or is expected to reside in such
housing) or any zero-bedroom rdv;reﬂing-

17. TFederal regulations at 40 C.F R, § 745.81(a)(2)(i1) re@uire that on or after April 22,
2010; no fim méy perform, offer, or claim to perform renovaﬁoné in target housing or child
occupied facilities without certification from EPA under 40 C.F.R. §V 745.89 unless the
renovation qualifies for one of the exceptions identified m 40 C.I.R. § 745.82(a) or (c).

8. Federal regulatioﬁs at40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a)(2)(ii)(C) requires the renovatof, béfofe
beginning the renovation, to cover the ground With plastic sheeting or other disposable
impermeable material extending 71(} feet beyond the perimeter of surfaces undergoing reﬁovatioﬁ
or a sufficient distance to collect falling paint debris, whichever is greater, unless the property
line prevents 10 feet of such ground covering. - |

19. Under Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2689, 1t is unlawful for any person to fail
or refuse to comply'with_ Secﬁons 406 and 407 of TSCA, 15 U.8.C. §§ 2686, 2687, or any rule ér
order issued thereunder..

20. Section 16(a) of TSCA, 42 U.S.C. § 2615, and 40 C,F.R.l § 745.87(d) authorize the
EPA- Administrator to assess a civil penalty of up to $25,000 for each violation of Section 409 of

TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2689. Each day that such a violation continues constitutes a separate



violation of Section 409 of TSCA. The Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C.
$ 3701, and its implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, increased these statutory
maximum penalties to $37,500 for violations that-occurred after January 12, 2009,

Genperal Allegations

21, During caiendar year 2013, Respolndent was a corporation under the 1aw.s éf the
State of Michigan. | |

22. During 2013, Respondent was a firm, as dlefined by 40 C.f R. § 745.83.

23. During 2013, Respondent, for compensation, performed; or directed workers who
'perfoﬁ“ﬂed, modifications of existing structures that resulted in disturbances of painted surfaces

as detailed in this paragraph.

Property Address , Year Renovation Activities Bate of Contract

Built o
512 West Seventh Avenue 1902 Exterior Renovation November 19, 2012 - o &
Traverse City, Michigan

| 24. The pi_“operty lsted in paragraph 23 was a residential dwelling, as defined at 40

C.F.R. § 745.103..

25.. The residential dwelling listed in paragraph 23 was built prior to 1978.

26. f he residential dwelling listed in paragraph 23 was target housing, as defined at
40 C.F.R. § 745.103. |

27. In performing the work identified in paragraph 23, Respondént disturbed and
removed in’teribr painted surfaces. |

28. The work identified in paragraph 23 \l;fas a renovation, as‘deﬁned at 40 C.F.R.

§ 745.83.

wh



Alleged Violations

29. Count L: Raspondént performed, offered, or claimed to perform a renovation at

512 West Seventh Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan, but failed to first obtain {rom EPA the
' cértiﬁcatién required by 40 CF.R. § 745.89: in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.81(a)}2)(1).

30. Count?2: Before beginning the renovation described in paragraph 29, Respondent
failed to cover the ground with plastic sheeting or other disposable impe:z"l.neablf: material
exfending 10 fee“t befond the perimeter of surfaces undergoing rencvation or a sufficient distance
to collect fa]iing paint debris, whichever is greater, unless the property line prevents 10 feet of

* such ground covering rééui_red by 40 CFR. § 745 .89, in violation of 40 C.F.R. §
745 85()(Q)GNC).

31. Respondent’s actions described n paragraphs 29-30 constitute two separate

viola‘tioné of 40 C.F.R. Part 745 and 15U.8.C. § 2689.
Civii Penalty _

32. Pursuant to Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.;S.C. § 2615(a), Complainant determined
that an appropriate civil penalty to settie [h_is action is $980.00. In detem-l.ining the -p.enaity
amount, Complainant coﬁsidered fhe nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation |
or violations alleged and, with respect to the viclator, ability to pay, effect on ability to continue
to do business, any history of }-jrior such violations, the degree of culpability, and such other
factors as justice may require. Complainant also considered EPA’s Interim Final Consolidated
Enforcement Responsc and Penalty Policy for the Pre-Renovation Education Rule;. Renovation,
Repair and P_ain’ting Rule; and Lead-Based Paint Activities Rule, dated August 19, .2010.

33. Respondent must pay a $980 civil penalty, plus interest, in three installments as

follows: $327.00 within 30 days of the effective date of this CAFO; $327.54 within 60 days of



the effective date of this CAFO; and $326.27 within 90 days of the effective date of this CAYO.
Respondent must pay the installments by sending a cashier’s or certified check, payable 0
“Treasurer, United States of America,” to:

U.S EPA

Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.0). Box 979G77

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000

Each check must state “In the Matter of DI’s Interior Specialties, Inc.” and the Docket Number
of this CAFO.

34. A Hansmittal letter stating Réspondent’s NELI;IE, Address, CaSe Title, Case Docket‘ '
Number and the Billing Document Number must accompany each payment. Responden? must
Sen& a copy of each check and tfansmittal letter to:

Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19])
U.S. BPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, llinois 60604

Pamela Grace {(L.C- 17])

Pesticides and Toxics Compliance Sec‘ﬂon
U.S. EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, linois 60604

James Morris (C-14])
Office of Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region 5
77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, llinois 60604 -
35. This eivil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

36. If Respondent does not pay timely any installment payment as set forth in paragraph

33, the entire unpaid balance of the civil penalty shall become due and owing upon written notice’



by EPA to Respondent of the de.linquency'. EPA may refer this matter to thé Attomey General
who will recover _Suph amount, plus interest, in the appropriate district court of the United. States
under Section 16(3)‘01‘TSCA, 15US.C. § 2615(&).' The validity, amount, and aﬁpropriateness of
the civil benal_ty are not reviewable in a collection action.

37. Pursuant té 31 CF.R. § 901.9, Respondent must pay the following on any amount
overdue under tlﬁs CAFO. Interest will accrue on any amount overdue from the date the payment
was due at a rate established pursuant to 31 U.S.C. §3717. Reépondent must.ﬁajf a $15 handling ‘
charge each month that any poﬁion of the penalty 1s more than 30 days past due. In addition,
Respondent must pay a 6 percent per year ?enaltf on any principal_amomit 90 days past due.

General Provisions

38. This CAFO resolves only Respondent’s 1iabi1ity for federal civil penalties for the
violations alleged in the CAFO. |

39. This CAFO does not affect the rights of EPA or the United_Staies to pursue
appropriate injunciive.or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations éf law.

40.- This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with TSCA,
regulations promulgated thereunder, and other applicable federal,- state, and local laws.

41. Respondent certifies that it is‘co'mplying with TSCA and regulaiions promulgated
thereunder.

42, The terms of this CAFO bind Respoﬁdent, and its successors and assigns.

3 43. | Each péi'son signing this agreement certiﬁe.s that he or she has the authority %0 sign

for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms.

44. Fach party agrees to bear its éwn costs and attorney’s fees in this action.

45 This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.



DJ’s Interior Specialties, [nec., Respondent

LAY R N | 3 f _ ,/IF G E;’ A
Ity A et P
Date John E,Ockert
i/, Presitlent

 DJ’s Interior Specialties, Inc.

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complaipant

13/0e 5017

Date Brigid Lowery
Acting Division Director
Land and Chemicals Division



TSCA-05-2013-6001

In the Matter of: DJ’s Interior Specialties, Ine. Bocket Mo,

Final Order

Ly my S S

Thrs Consent Agreemeint and Frmat Order, as agreed to by the pariles, shall become
effective immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes

this proceeding, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED.

Tk b maemee T el ' ' {*J}* s 2.0 'i,ﬁ
Date : ~ Amn Coyle ‘
- .. Regional Judicial Officer _
Utiited States Environmental Protection Acrency |
Region 5

10



In the matter of DU's riseor lec s
Tocket Number:  TSCA-85-2018-C @‘i

( i
[ ]
5

I cextify that [ served a true and. umc,ct copy Of lhe foregomo Consent Agreeraent and Final
Order, which was filed on __w#% 2y S, 2SS . in the following manier
to the addl essees:

Copy by Certitied Mail

Return-receipt: | _
John Ockert
DJ’s Interior Speciatties, Inc.-
6505 Rahe Road

Kingsley, Michigan 49649

Copy by E-mail to
Attorney for Complainant: James Morris

THOTY W ranees(a

Copy by E-mail to
Regional Judicial Officer: Amn Coyle
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4 */LaDawn Whitehead

Regional Hearing Clerk
1.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
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